
 

 

 

 

COMMISSIONERS' 

DECISION MAKING 

MEETING 
________________________________________________ 

Wednesday, 19 August 2015 at 6.30 p.m. 
C1, 1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, 

E14 2BG 
 

The meeting is open to the public to attend.  
 

Members: 
 

 

Sir Ken Knight (Chair) (Commissioner) 
Chris Allison (Member) (Commissioner) 
Max Caller (Member) (Commissioner) 
Alan Wood (Member) (Commissioner) 
 

 

Public Information: 
 
The public are welcome to attend these meetings.  

 

Contact for further enquiries:  
Antonella Burgio, Democratic Services,  
1st Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, E14 2BG 
Tel: 020 7364 4881 
E-mail: antonella.burgio@towerhamlets.gov.uk 
Web:http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee 
 
 

Scan this code 
for an 
electronic 

agenda:  

 

 
 



 

 

 
Public Information 

Attendance at meetings. 
The public are welcome to attend the Commissioners decision making meetings. However 
seating is limited and offered on a first come first served basis.  
 
Audio/Visual recording of meetings.  
Should you wish to film the meeting, please contact the Committee Officer shown on the 
agenda front page.  

 
Mobile telephones 
Please switch your mobile telephone on to silent mode whilst in the meeting.  

 
Access information for the Town Hall, Mulberry Place.      

Bus: Routes: 15, 277, 108, D6, D7, D8 all stop 
near the Town Hall.  
Docklands Light Railway: Nearest stations are 
East India: Head across the bridge and then 
through the complex to the Town Hall, Mulberry 
Place Blackwall station: Across the bus station 
then turn right to the back of the Town Hall 
complex, through the gates and archway to the 
Town Hall.  
Tube: The closest tube stations are Canning 
Town and Canary Wharf. 
Car Parking: There is limited visitor pay and 
display parking at the Town Hall (free from 6pm) 

If you are viewing this on line:(http://www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/content_pages/contact_us.aspx)  

 
Meeting access/special requirements.  
The Town Hall is accessible to people with special needs. There are accessible toilets, lifts 
to venues. Disabled parking bays and an induction loop system for people with hearing 
difficulties are available.  Documents can be made available in large print, Braille or audio 
version. For further information, contact the Officers shown on the front of the agenda.  

     
 
Fire alarm 
If the fire alarm sounds please leave the building immediately by the nearest available fire 
exit without deviating to collect belongings. Fire wardens will direct you to the exits and fire 
assembly point. If you are unable to use the stairs, a member of staff will direct you to a 
safe area. The meeting will reconvene if it is safe to do so, or else it will stand adjourned. 
 

Electronic agendas reports, minutes and film recordings. 
Copies of agendas, reports and minutes for council meetings and links to 
filmed webcasts can also be found on our website from day of publication.   
 
To access this, click www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee and search for 
the relevant committee and meeting date.  
 

Agendas are available at the Town Hall, Libraries, Idea Centres and One 
Stop Shops and on the Mod.Gov, iPad and Android apps.   

 
QR code for 
smart phone 
users 



 
 

 

 
 

A Guide to Commissioner Decision Making 
 

Commissioner Decision Making at Tower Hamlets 
As directed by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government, the above 
Commissioners have been directed to take decision making responsibility for specific 
areas of work. These include examples such as the disposal of properties, awarding of 
grants and certain officer employment functions. This decision making body has been set 
up to enable the Commissioners to take their decisions in public in a similar manner to 
existing processes.  
 
Key Decisions 
Executive decisions are all decisions that are not specifically reserved for other bodies 
(such as Development or Licensing Committees). Most, but not all, of the decisions to be 
taken by the Commissioners are Executive decisions. Certain important Executive 
decisions are classified as Key Decisions.  
 
The constitution describes Key Decisions as an executive decision which is likely  
  

a) to result in the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of savings which are, 
significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates; or  

 
b) to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an area comprising two 

or more wards in the borough.  
 

Upcoming Key Decisions are published on the website on the ‘Forthcoming Decisions’ 
page through www.towerhamlets.gov.uk/committee. The Commissioners have chosen to 
broadly follow the Council’s definition in classifying their determinations. 
 

Published Decisions 
After the meeting, any decisions taken will be published on the Council’s website.  
 

• The decisions for this meeting will be published on: Monday, 24 August 2015 
 
 

 

 



 

 

 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

COMMISSIONERS' DECISION MAKING MEETING  
 

WEDNESDAY, 19 AUGUST 2015 

 
6.30 p.m. 

 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Pages 1 - 4) 
 

 

3. CONSIDERATION OF PUBLIC SUBMISSIONS   
 
 Consideration of any written comments received from members of the public in relation to 

any of the reports on the agenda. 
 
[Any submissions should be sent to the clerk listed on the agenda front page by 5pm the 
day before the meeting] 
 

 

4. REPORTS FOR CONSIDERATION   
 

 
4 .1 Extension to Early Years Sector Support (ex MSG) 

funding   
 

5 - 18 All Wards 

 Agree to the extension of the original MSG contracts (albeit 
now funded by the Early Years Sector Support funding) in 
respect of 23 childcare providers and 4 infrastructure 
organisations to the 31 December 2015 with a provision to 
extend for a further three months until 31 March 2016 while 
the commissioning process for future services is 
completed.  

 
Delegate to the Head of Legal Services the authority to 
enter into all necessary extension agreements on behalf of 
the Council under similar terms as are pre-existing and 
agreed between the parties 
 
 

  

4 .2 Event Fund applications - September 2015   
 

 All Wards 

 Report to follow. 
 

  

5. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT   
 

 
 



DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE MONITORING OFFICER 
 

This note is for guidance only.  For further details please consult the Members’ Code of Conduct 
at Part 5.1 of the Council’s Constitution.    
 
Please note that the question of whether a Member has an interest in any matter, and whether or 
not that interest is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest, is for that Member to decide.  Advice is 
available from officers as listed below but they cannot make the decision for the Member.  If in 
doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to attending a meeting.   
 
Interests and Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPIs) 
 
You have an interest in any business of the authority where that business relates to or is likely to 
affect any of the persons, bodies or matters listed in section 4.1 (a) of the Code of Conduct; and 
might reasonably be regarded as affecting the well-being or financial position of yourself, a 
member of your family or a person with whom you have a close association, to a greater extent 
than the majority of other council tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward affected. 
 
You must notify the Monitoring Officer in writing of any such interest, for inclusion in the Register 
of Members’ Interests which is available for public inspection and on the Council’s Website. 
 
Once you have recorded an interest in the Register, you are not then required to declare that 
interest at each meeting where the business is discussed, unless the interest is a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest (DPI). 
 
A DPI is defined in Regulations as a pecuniary interest of any of the descriptions listed at 
Appendix A overleaf.  Please note that a Member’s DPIs include his/her own relevant interests 
and also those of his/her spouse or civil partner; or a person with whom the Member is living as 
husband and wife; or a person with whom the Member is living as if they were civil partners; if the 
Member is aware that that other person has the interest.    
 
Effect of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest on participation at meetings 
 
Where you have a DPI in any business of the Council you must, unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the authority's Monitoring Officer following consideration by the Dispensations 
Sub-Committee of the Standards Advisory Committee:- 

- not seek to improperly influence a decision about that business; and 
- not exercise executive functions in relation to that business. 

 
If you are present at a meeting where that business is discussed, you must:- 

- Disclose to the meeting  the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting 
or when the interest becomes apparent, if later; and  

- Leave the room (including any public viewing area) for the duration of consideration and 
decision on the item and not seek to influence the debate or decision  

 
When declaring a DPI, Members should specify the nature of the interest and the agenda item to 
which the interest relates.  This procedure is designed to assist the public’s understanding of the 
meeting and to enable a full record to be made in the minutes of the meeting.   
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



Where you have a DPI in any business of the authority which is not included in the Member’s 
register of interests and you attend a meeting of the authority at which the business is 
considered, in addition to disclosing the interest to that meeting, you must also within 28 days 
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest for inclusion in the Register.  
 
Further advice 
 
For further advice please contact:- 

• David Galpin, Interim Monitoring Officer, 020 7364 4800 

• John Williams, Service Head, Democratic Services, 020 7364 4204 
 

Page 2



APPENDIX A:  Definition of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
 
(Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012, Reg 2 and Schedule) 
 

Subject Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vacation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on 
for profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other 
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the 
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by the 
Member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards the 
election expenses of the Member. 

This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union 
within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between the relevant person (or a 
body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and 
the relevant authority— 

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works 
are to be executed; and 

(b) which has not been fully discharged. 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the 
relevant authority. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to the Member’s knowledge)— 

(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and 

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a 
beneficial interest. 
 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where— 

(a) that body (to the Member’s knowledge) has a place of 
business or land in the area of the relevant authority; and 

(b) either— 
 

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the 
total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the 
relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth 
of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Commissioner Decision Report 

19th August 2015 

Report of: Debbie Jones  
Interim Corporate Director Children’s Services  

Classification:
Unrestricted

Extension to Early Years Sector Support (ex MSG) funding  

Originating Officer(s) Monica Forty  

Wards affected All wards  

Key Decision Yes 

Community Plan Theme A Prosperous Community  

Reasons for Urgency
The report was published on 17th August 2015, which is less than five clear days 
between publication and consideration by the Commissioners on 19th August 2015 
as is usual practice.  The areas contained in this report are however significant 
areas in terms of service delivery and spend and would benefit from obtaining a 
decision as soon as possible.  The Commissioners’ meeting on 29th of July had 
requested more information before being able to agree to the extension to the 
Mainstream Grant roll-over due to delay in the decision on services Schools Forum 
wishes to commission in the future; the commissioning process will be a budgetary/ 
service commissioning decision not a grant funding decision. 

If no decision is taken or the extension to the funding is not granted, then small 
organisations whose services may be needed at a later date may need to make staff 
redundant. In one specific case, 91 childcare staff would not be paid in September 
as a result of the loss of payroll support services.  It is also arguable that the five 
clear day requirement in the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 does not apply to decisions 
by the Commissioners. 

Executive Summary 

The Early Years Sector Support (ex-MSG) is a block of funding from the Dedicated 
Schools Grant (DSG) that was previously used to contribute to the Local Authority’s 
Mainstream Grant programme. From 2015/16 this budget allocation reverts back to 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) as agreed by Schools Forum.  Any future spend 
from this block of funding will be agreed by Schools Forum.  The Commissioners 
delegated the operation of the arrangements for the 2015/16 DSG to the Schools 
Forum on 27th March 2015.  It is intended that a proportion of this budget will be 
used to increase the Early Learning for Two Year Olds payment rate for childcare 
provision for disadvantaged two year olds and the rest will be commissioned for 
infrastructure support for childcare provision and essential early years sector 
activities that cannot be provided from elsewhere; all organisations currently funded 
will be free to tender for services through this process.   

Agenda Item 4.1

Page 5



Approval is being sought for the extension to the current grant spending for 23 
childcare providers and 4 infrastructure organisations, as detailed in Appendix 1 and 
2, from the Early Years Sector Support funding block due to delay in the decision on 
services Schools Forum wishes to commission in the future; the future 
commissioning process will be a budgetary/ service commissioning decision not a 
grant funding decision.   

The requested extension is to the 31 December 2015, with a provision to extend for 
a further three months until 31 March 2016 in the event that the proposed 
commissioning exercise has not concluded within the first timeframe.      

Recommendations:

The Commissioners are recommended to:  

1. Agree to the extension of the original MSG contracts (albeit now funded by 
the Early Years Sector Support funding) in respect of 23 childcare 
providers and 4 infrastructure organisations to the 31 December 2015 with 
a provision to extend for a further three months until 31 March 2016 while 
the commissioning process for future services is completed.  

2. Delegate to the Head of Legal Services the authority to enter into all 
necessary extension agreements on behalf of the Council under similar 
terms as are pre-existing and agreed between the parties 

1. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS

1.1 The Local Authority is allocated funding from central government to fund the 
provision of childcare for children eligible for a free place through the Early 
Learning for Two Year Olds programme and to ensure the sufficiency of 
quality childcare through supporting the business sustainability of childcare 
providers.  

2. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS

2.1 An alternative option is to do nothing. However, it is very possible in that case 
that the Local authority will not meet certain statutory duties. 

Duties set out in the Early Education and Childcare – Statutory Guidance for 
Local Authorities, Department for Education September 2014, include:   

� Ensuring all children are able to take up their entitlement to funded early 
education in a high quality childcare setting 

� Securing sufficient childcare to ensure that parents are able to work 
because childcare places are available, accessible and affordable and are 
delivered flexibly in a range of high quality providers 

Page 6



� Providing information, advice, guidance and training for childcare providers 
to improve the quality of their provision and to promote high quality early 
education. 

2.2 If no decision is taken or the extension to the funding is not granted, then 
small organisations whose services may be needed at a later date may need 
to make staff redundant. In one specific case, 91 childcare staff would not be 
paid in September as a result of the loss of payroll support services. In 
another case at least 50 families would cease receiving services at least 20 of 
which have children with profound special needs. 

3. DETAILS OF REPORT 

3.1 Purpose of Proposed Funding  
The Early Years Sector Support (ex-MSG) funding is used to support 
voluntary sector childcare providers in making available childcare places for 
children eligible for free childcare through the Early Learning for Two Year 
Olds programme and the Free Entitlement for three and four year olds. In 
addition, the funding is also used to fund infrastructure support services for 
voluntary sector childcare providers including payroll management, support 
and capacity building for management committees and support for children 
with additional needs.  This approval would be for a general extension to 
current services. 

3.2 Approval Process for Grants  
The funded projects were approved as part of the 2012-15 Mainstream Grant 
programme, this proposal represents a continuation of the previously 
approved projects.  As of 27/03/15 Commissioners agreed to delegate the 
operation of the existing arrangements for the DSG to the Corporate Director 
(Education, Social Care and Wellbeing), whereby the Schools Forum 
determines the allocation of the ISB and Service Heads approve the allocation 
of the ‘contingency’.  

3.3 Grant Criteria 
The principle criteria are for areas of work that meet council objectives as set 
out in the Community Plan 2012-2015, the Strategic Plan 2015/16 and the 
Children & Families Plan 2012-15. 

Strategic Plan 2015/16 – A Prosperous Community 

• Improve educational aspiration and attainment 
o Expand free early years education places of high quality for 

disadvantaged two year-olds 
o Raise attainment of all children at the end of the Early Years 

Foundation Stage and narrow the gap between all children and those 
that receive Pupil Premium 

Community Plan – A Fair and Prosperous Community  

• Enable children and young people to achieve their full potential 
o Deliver ambitious targets for expansion of childcare provision 

Page 7



• Build strong community leadership and social capital through a thriving 
voluntary and community sector (VCS)  

o VCS shape strategy and services and coproduce local services
o VCS resilience and financial sustainability
o Monitor, evaluate and demonstrate impact

Community Plan – A healthy and supportive community

• Ensure a healthy start for every child 
o Ensure that all children are physically, emotionally, behaviourally 

and cognitively ready for school

Children & Families Plan 2012-15 

• Maternity and Early Years Children are Healthy  
o All parents and children achieve positive physical and emotional 

development milestones 

The types of project which have previously been funded through MSG 
included: payroll services and management committee support for voluntary 
childcare providers; toy library services; and childcare support for children 
with complex additional needs. 

3.4 Eligibility  
The Mainstream Grant funding was only awarded to eligible childcare 
providers; a childcare provider is considered to be eligible if: 

• The childcare provision is registered with Ofsted.  

• they meet the Ofsted rating of requires improvement/satisfactory or 
better, or, where specified in the grant criteria, of good or better 

• the childcare provider can show how they will meet the Early Years 
Foundation Stage. 

• the childcare provision is located within the London Borough of Tower 
Hamlets.  

• The provider is administering any other funding received through LBTH 
in accordance within the terms and conditions of that funding. 

• The organisation is a voluntary sector organisation.  

3.5 Award Amount and Payment  
The annual budget for the extension of MSG projects is £185,712 which was 
agreed by Schools Forum as part of the DSG budget for 2015/16. 

4. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 

4.1 The DSG budget is approved by the Tower Hamlets Schools Forum on a 
yearly basis. The 2015/16 budget was approved by Schools Forum in January 
2015; the projects mentioned in this report are budgeted for within the Early 
Years element of the DSG in 2015/16. 

  

Page 8



5. LEGAL COMMENTS  
  
5.1. The power of the commissioners to make decisions in relation to grants arises 

from directions made by the Secretary of State on 17 December 2014 
pursuant to powers under sections 15(5) and 15(6) of the Local Government 
Act 1999 (the Directions).  Paragraph 4(ii) and Annex B of the Directions 
together provide that, until 31 March 2017, the Council’s functions in relation 
to grants will be exercised by appointed Commissioners, acting jointly or 
severally.  This is subject to an exception in relation to grants made under 
section 24 of the Housing Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996, 
for the purposes of section 23 of that Act (disabled facilities grant). 

5.2. To the extent that the Commissioners are exercising powers which would 
otherwise have been the Council’s, there is a need to ensure the Council has 
power to make the grants in question.  The Commissioners will wish to be 
satisfied that this is the case.  It appears from the information provided in the 
report that the grants are capable of being supported under the Council’s 
powers and, in this regard, the powers set out below appear particularly 
relevant. 

5.3. The grant scheme outlined in the report is concerned with: ensuring the 
sufficiency of childcare and supporting the business sustainability of voluntary 
sector childcare providers within the borough. The scheme may be 
supportable by reference to the Council’s obligations under the Childcare Act 
2006, which relevantly include the following – 

• to improve the well-being of young children in Tower Hamlets and to 
reduce inequalities between young children in specified respects 
(which include education, training and recreation) (section 1(1)); 

• to make arrangements to secure that early childhood services in 
Tower Hamlets (which include early years provision) are provided in 
an integrated manner which is calculated to facilitate access to 
services and maximize the benefit of those services to parents, 
prospective parents and young children (section 3(2)).  Early childhood 
services include early years’ provision, which is childcare for the 
under-fives. 

• to secure, as far as reasonably practicable, that there is sufficient 
childcare provided in Tower Hamlets to meet the relevant needs of 
parents.  This is for parents who require childcare in order to enable 
them to take up work or to undertake education or training which could 
assist them to obtain work.  Childcare means any form of care for a 
child and includes education and other supervised activity. 

5.4. In determining the sufficiency of childcare in Tower Hamlets, the Council may 
have regard to childcare available outside of Tower Hamlets and is required to 
have regard to: the provision of childcare in respect of which the childcare 
element of working tax credit is payable or for which childcare costs may be 
included in the calculation of universal credit; and the provision of childcare 
suitable for disable children. 

Page 9



5.5. The Childcare Act makes clear that although the Council’s obligation is to 
secure the provision of sufficient childcare in Tower Hamlets, this need not be 
actually provided by the Council.  Pursuant to section 8 of the Childcare Act, 
the Council may assist any person who provides or proposes to provide 
childcare and may make arrangements with any person to provide childcare.  
The assistance which the Council may provide to a childcare provider and the 
arrangements which the Council may make for the provision of childcare 
include the giving of financial assistance. 

5.6. The Council is further required under the Childcare Act 2006 to secure that 
prescribed early years provision is available free of charge for specified 
categories of children under school age.  Early years provision means the 
provision of childcare for a child under the age of five.  The Local Authority 
(Duty to Secure Early Years Provision Free of Charge) Regulations 2014 (“the 
Free Provision Regulations”) provide that children entitled to free early years 
provision from the Council are two year olds who are eligible children and 3 
year olds.  A child is eligible if he or she falls within one of seven prescribed 
categories, which include children entitled to free school meals, looked after 
children and children with special educational needs. 

5.7. In discharging its duties to provide childcare and free early years provision, 
the Council must have regard to guidance given by the Secretary of State, 
reference to which is made in the body of the report. 

5.8. By virtue of section 111 of the Local Government Act 1972, the Council has 
power to do anything which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or 
incidental to, the discharge of any of its functions.  This may involve 
expenditure, borrowing or lending of money or the acquisition or disposal of 
any property or rights.  There is likely sufficient power to support the proposed 
grant schemes by virtue of the Council’s functions under the Childcare Act.  
However, if there were any doubt as to the Council’s power to make a grant in 
pursuance of those functions, section 111 would supply that power. 

5.9. Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 gives the Council a general power of 
competence to do anything that individuals generally may do, subject to 
specified restrictions and limitations imposed by other statutes.  As individuals 
may provide financial support to improve childcare, the Council may also do 
so, provided there is a good reason to do so and provided there is no 
statutory prohibition on doing so (which generally there is not).  There may be 
a good reason for giving a grant if it is likely to further the Council’s 
sustainable community strategy under section 4 of the Local Government Act 
2000, set out in the Community Plan, or one of the Council’s related 
strategies.  Information is set out in the report as to the connection between 
the proposed theme specifications and the Council’s relevant strategies. 

5.10. The Council has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its 
functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness.  This is referred to as the Council's best value 
duty and the following matters are relevant to discharge of the duty – 

Page 10



• It is proposed that the schemes will be advertised in ways specified in 
the report, with the exception of the special project funding for which 
all eligible providers will be invited to participate.  To this extent the 
grants will be exposed to a degree of competition. 

• The Council should, additionally, be able to demonstrate a direct 
benefit accrued from the money spent under each grant.  In this 
regard applications are to be evaluated against the criteria specified in 
the report.  This would leave a substantial area of discretion for the 
corporate director to determine whether a grant should be awarded 
and in what amount.  This provides flexibility, which can be conducive 
to delivering value for money, but may have a reduced level of 
transparency which has the potential to impact the integrity of the 
decision-making process. 

• There should be a grant agreement for each grant and provision 
made to ensure delivery of the projects in line with the application and 
approval and in the event of non-delivery to protect the Council’s 
position.  Robust monitoring requirements need to be in place and 
appropriate performance related payment mechanisms introduced 
into the terms of any grant award. 

5.11. The Council must ensure that any grants are given out on a non-profit basis.  
Where a grant includes a profit element it no longer remains a grant and 
would be considered to be procurement activity.  In such circumstances this 
means that the Council would have failed in its duties to properly procure the 
subject matter of the grant in accordance with the Council’s constitution and 
the prevailing law. 

5.12. It is clear that there is a potential that some of the organisations (for example 
child minder businesses) may use the grant in order to provide growth to their 
business and to some extent this appears to be the purpose of the grant.  This 
could, therefore, potentially class such grants as “State Aid” which is 
prohibited under European Law.  However, it is unlikely that there will be 
cross border interest which is required for the grant to contravene the state 
aid rules.  This is because it is unlikely that such a grant would allow a child 
minder business to bid in another EU member state (or gain some other 
advantage in the market place) or that a child minder business situated in 
another member state would be interested in receiving a similar grant.  Also 
as regards state aid, a de minimis rule applies so provided that no individual 
applicant receives more than 200,000 Euros worth of grant within a 3 year 
period then the state aid rules will not apply to such grant  

5.13. In carrying out its functions, the Council must have due regard to the need to 
eliminate unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance 
equality of opportunity and the need to foster good relations between persons 
who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t (the public sector 
equality duty).  A proportionate level of equality analysis is required to 
discharge the duty. 

  

Page 11



6. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 

6.1 The allocation of Early Years Service grant funding is part of the Local 
Authority’s strategy to improve achievement by improving outcomes for young 
children.   

6.2 The continued allocation of grant funding is necessary to ensure the Council 
meets its statutory obligations in terms of:  

• Ensuring all children are able to take up their entitlement to funded 
early education in a high quality childcare setting.  

• Supporting access and inclusion of children with significant additional 
needs (Special Educational Needs)   

• Securing sufficient childcare to ensure that parents are able to work 
because childcare places are available, accessible and affordable and 
are delivered flexibly in a range of high quality providers. 

• Providing information, advice, guidance and training for childcare 
providers to improve the quality of their provision and to promote high 
quality early education.  

7. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT

7.1 There are no specific actions for a greener environment as a result of these 
funding processes.  

8. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS  

8.1     All individual projects funded through this funding stream are closely 
monitored to ensure that expenditure is in line with that agreed in the Grant 
Agreement and that the project delivers the project deliverables as defined in 
the Grant Agreement. 

  
9. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

9.1  Early Intervention breaks the cycle in which people who grow up with 
dysfunctional behaviours and lifestyles may transmit to their children, who, in 
turn, transmit them to their grandchildren and so on. Early Intervention offers a 
real chance to break this destructive pattern and helps raising children to 
become good parents and carers in turn. 

10. EFFICENCY STATEMENT  

10.1  There are no specific efficiency contributions as a result of this funding 
process.  

  

Page 12



11.     SAFEGUARDING IMPLICATIONS   

11.1 Applicants have to make a declaration that they have not been disqualified 
from working with children. 

11.2 The Local Authority reserves the right to undertake DBS at any time during 
contract period. 

11.3 If Ofsted refuse registration on the grounds of unsuitable persons or 
disqualified persons the funding will be have to be repaid in full. 

11.4   Each provision is allocated a Childcare Development Adviser to continue to 
help develop their provision, meet the necessary requirements and good 
practice.  

11.5    All providers must have a safeguarding policy and procedure, this is checked 
for suitability and to ensure it complies with the Tower Hamlets Local 
Safeguarding Children Board (LSCB) procedures by the Early Years 
Childcare Development Adviser.  

11.6   All early years providers must have a designated person for safeguarding, first 
aid and inclusion.  

11.7   The designated safeguarding person for each provision must attend Tower 
Hamlets safeguarding training.   

____________________________________ 

Linked Reports, Appendices and Background Documents

Linked Report 

• None 

Appendices 

• None

Background Documents – Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)(Access 
to Information)(England) Regulations 2012

• None 

Officer contact details for documents: 

• Jo Green x4844 

• Monica Forty x 3114 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



No on 

Map
Project / Grant Award Organisation

Profiled 

Fund to 

Date

Funds 

Released 

to date

Red, Amber, 

Green (Rating)

Comments, Actions and 

Recommendations

1

Abertots            

£18,000

Abertots Play - childcare 

places

£18,000 £18,000

Green 

3

Allen Gardens Playgroup                    

£28,160

Allen Gardens Playgroup - 

childcare places

£28,160 £28,160

Green 

4

Avebury Playgroup 

£37,000

Avebury Playgroup - 

childcare places

£37,000 £37,000

Green 

7

Brayford Square Playgroup      

£25,000

Brayford Square 

Playgroup - childcare 

places

£25,000 £25,000

Green 

8

Burdett Estate Playgroup £12,000 Burdett Estate Playgroup - 

childcare places

£12,000 £12,000

Green

39

St Francis Family Centre                 

£20,000

Catholic Children's Society 

(Westminster) - childcare 

places

£20,000 £20,000

Green 

Borough 

wide

Early Years Network 

Infrastructure Support To Early 

Years Service Providers   

£225,000

Early Years Network 

Tower Hamlets - 

Infrastrucure support

£225,000 £225,000

Green

Closed

Empowering parents and families 

in early years provision, training 

and management  

£20,000

Glamis Community 

Nursery

£20,000 £3,333

CLOSED

CLOSED (due to inadequacy ratings by 

OFSTED and financial weaknesses 

within the organisation).    NO 

FURTHER ACTION NECESSARY

Borough 

wide

Eleanor Street Children's Project  

£9,000

Hackney Playbus - 

Targets traveller 

community borough wide

£9,000 £9,000

Green 

17

Island House Playgroup   

£30,350

Island House Pre-School 

Playgroup - childcare

£30,350 £30,350

Green 

18

Jagonari Playhouse                

£60,000

Jagonari Women's 

Educational Resource 

Centre

£60,000 £60,000

Red

21

Lincoln Hall  Preschool        

£32,000

Lincoln Hall Playgroup - 

child care

£32,000 £32,000

Green 

26

Mile End Nursery & Playgroup.      

£18,000

Mile End Nursery and 

Playgroup - child care

£18,000 £18,000

Green 

27

Mudchute Playgroup (muddy 

boots)             

£36,700

Mudchute Association - 

child care

£36,700 £36,700

Green 

28

Munchkins Playgroup              

£39,000

Munchkins Playgroup - 

childcare

£39,000 £39,000

Green 

33

Poplar Play Centre Ltd                             

£30,000

Poplar Play Centre - child 

care

£30,000 £30,000

Green 

Near 18

Rainbow House Pre-school  

£37,260

Rainbow House - child 

care

£37,260 £37,260

Green 

35

Rainbow playgroup 

£34,273

Rainbow Playgroup - child 

care

£34,273 £34,273 Green        (status 

has changed from 

Amber in previous 

quarter)

The Playgroup has had to move to a 

temporary site due to building works -

provider is now operational again and 

occupancy is starting to grow. 

36

Ranwell playgroup 

£27,000

Ranwell Playgroup - child 

care

£27,000 £27,000 Green        (status 

has changed from 

Amber in previous 

quarter)

There has been an increase in 

occupancy since the previous quarter.  

Regular visits are being carried out to 

APPENDIX 1.        Mainstream Grants – Early Years Services (1 January 2013 – 31 March 2015)

Page 15



No on 

Map
Project / Grant Award Organisation

Profiled 

Fund to 

Date

Funds 

Released 

to date

Red, Amber, 

Green (Rating)

Comments, Actions and 

Recommendations

37

Scallywags Parent Run Nursery  

£15,000

Scallywags Parent Run 

Nursery - child care

£15,000 £15,000

Green 

Borough 

wide

Play Opportunity For Somali 

Disabled Children         

£25,900

Somali Parents and 

Children's Play 

Association - child care

£25,900 £25,900

Green

Near 3

Heba Nursery EYFS provision             

£28,000

SSBA Community Trust: 

Heba Womens Project - 

child care

£28,000 £28,000

Green 

Borough 

wide

Under 5's & Crèche Project  

Infrastructure

£18,000

St Hilda's East Community 

Centre - creche and 

infrastructure support

£18,000 £18,000

Green 

42

43

Tate House Playgroup @ 

Cranbrook estate and Tate 

House playgroup @ Meath 

Gardens            £41,000

Tate House Playgroup - 

child care

£41,000 £41,000

Green 

47

Tower Hamlets Opportunity 

Group Service Delivery   

£140,000

THOG Toy Library (Tower 

Hamlets Opportunity 

Group Toy Library) - child 

care and infrastructure 

£140,000 £140,000

Green 

Borough 

wide

Soft Play Projects  

£35,000

Toyhouse Libraries 

Association of Tower 

Hamlets (Mobile Toy 

Library for Groups) - B79

£35,000 £35,000

Green 

Borough 

wide

Home Visiting Mobile Toy Library 

Service                 

£45,000

Toyhouse Libraries 

Association of Tower 

Hamlets (Mobile Toy 

Library for Groups) 

£45,000 £45,000

Green 

48

Vernon Pre-School Playgroup                     

£25,000

Vernon Playgroup £25,000 £25,000

Green

49

Wapping playgroup    

£25,000  

Wapping Playgroup £25,000 £25,000

Green

50

Playgroup       

£23,145

Jagonari Women's 

Educational Resource 

Centre  (Wapping 

Playzone)

£23,145 £23,145

Red

£1,159,788 £1,143,121

RAG - Guidance
As of end of quarter 4 (March 2015) - project performing well in terms of cost, time and quality Green

As of end of quarter 4 (March 2015) - project is underspending or underperforming by less15% in relatiAmber

As of end of quarter 4 (March 2015) - project has failed to submit its quarterly report, or is undersp Red

Page 16



The Highway
Aspen Way

Mile End Road

G
ro

ve
 R

o
a
d

Bethnal Green Road

B
u

rd
e
t t

R
o
a
d

East India Dock Road

R
o

th
e

rh
ith

e
Tunnel

Bow Road

9

8

7

6

5

4

3
2

1

52

51

50

49

48

47

46

4544

43

42

41

40

39

38 37

36

35

34

33

32

31

30

29

28

27

26

25

24

23

22

21

19
18

17

15

14

13

12

11

10

Eligible 2yo children

Providers with places for 2yo

8 - 20 (Small)

21 - 40 (Medium)

41 - 68 (Large)

69 - 100 (Very Large)

100+ (Extra Large)

Borough Boundary

·

0 0.5 1 1.5 20.25
Kilometers

© Crown copyright and database rights 2015 Ordnance Survey, London Borough of Tower Hamlets 100019288

Providers with 2 year olds places and 
eligible 2 year olds children

Date: 15/07/2015

Created by ESIST Team at Tower Hamlets
Data Origin, DFE and Early Years Team

Data version: June 2015

No on Map Short Name No on Map Short Name

1 Abertots 27 Mudchute

2 Alice Model Sch 28 Munchkins

3 Allen Gardens 29 New Generation

4 Avebury 30 Noah's Ark

5 Barkantine 31 Old Church

6 Bow Nursery 32 Overland

7 Brayford Square 33 Poplar Play

8 Burdett 34 Queen Mary

9 City Gateway 35 Rainbow

10 DreamMaker 36 Ranwell

11 Excellence 37 Scallywags

12 Gateway Tots 38 Shining Futures

13 Global Kids Limehouse 39 St Frances

14 Global Kids Mile End 40 St Peters

15 Harmony 41 Step by Step

16 Headstart 42 Tate House @ Meath

17 Island House 43 Tate House

18 Jagonari 44 Nursery @ St Paul's

19 John Smith 45 The Old Station

20 Limiehouse Arches 46 Tower Hamlets Coll

21 Lincoln Hall 47 THOG

22 Little Canaries 48 Vernon

23 Magic Roundabout 49 Wapping PG

24 Mary Sambrook 50 Wapping Playzone

25 Matchbox 51 Westfield

26 Mile End 52 Winterton Hs

111

3

4444

7777

8

9

226

2277

228

3339

221211

11
1119

2

11117777

333

335

336

3377

442

444443

4477

449

50

8444448

AbAA ertots

AlAA len Gardens

AvAA evv bury

Brayfyy off rd Square

Burdetttt

St Frances

3

4

7 B

8 B

11

39 S

Island17 I House Tate House43

18

Tate House @ Meath42

JagonariJ

Hall21 Lincoln

26 Mile End

Mudchute27

Munchkins28

Poplar Play33

Rainbow35

Ranwell36

Scallywyy ags37

THOG47

VeVV rnon48

Wapping PG49

MSG

18

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	4.1 Extension to Early Years Sector Support (ex MSG) funding
	Appendix 1 Early Years 0715
	Appendix 2 Eligible 2yo with Providers June15 (2)


